
Minutes of the 
CANNON BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 
 
Present: Chair Clay Newton, Commissioners Barb Knop, and Les Sinclair in person 

Commissioners Mike Bates, Charles Bennett, Aaron Matusick, and Anna Moritz via Zoom 
 
Excused:  
 
Staff: Director of Community Development Jeff Adams, Land Use Attorney Bill Kabeiseman, City 

Planner Robert St. Clair, City Manager Bruce St. Dennis, and Administrative Assistant Katie 
Hillenhagen 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Newton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
(1) Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion: Knop moved to approve the agenda as presented; Sinclair seconded the motion. 
 
Vote: Sinclair, Matusick, Knop, Bates, Moritz, Bennett and Chair Newton voted AYE; the motion 

passed 
    
(2) Consideration of the Minutes for the Planning Commission Meeting of August 25, 2022 
 
 
Motion: Moritz moved to approve the minutes; Bennett seconded the motion. 
 
Vote: Sinclair, Matusick, Knop, Bates, Moritz, Bennett and Chair Newton voted AYE; the motion 

passed 
 
(3) Continuation of CD# 22-01 & CU# 22-03, David Vonada request, on behalf of Davidspruce LLC, for 

a seven-lot Conditional Use Permit Cluster Development Subdivision in the Wetland Overlay 
Zone. 

 
David Vonada, on behalf of David Pietka, request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a cluster 
development consisting of five single-family dwellings and a fourplex apartment. The property is 
located on the southwest corner of 1st and Spruce St. (Tax Lot 04402, Map 51030AA) in a Limited 
Commercial (C1) Zone. The request will be reviewed under Cannon Beach Municipal Code, Titles 16 
Subdivisions and 17 Zoning, including Sections 16.04.130 Subdivision-Applicable Standards, 
16.04.400 Variance-Cluster Development, 17.22.030 Conditional Uses Permitted, and 17.43.040-050 
Conditional Uses and Activities Permitted in Wetland and Wetland Buffer Areas, Standards. 
 



 Planning Commission Minutes September 22, 2022   Page 2 of  4 

No one objected to the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission to hear this matter at this time. Chair 
Newton asked if any Commissioner had any conflict of interest. There were none. Chair Newton asked if 
any Commissioner had personal bias to declare. There were none. Chair Newton asked if any commissioner 
had any ex parte contacts to declare. There were none. The commissioners declared their site visits. 
 
Chair Newton asked for the Staff Report. Adams reminded everyone that the record was closed under the 
Oregon 7-7-7 rules. He noted that the applicant made new evidence available after the record was closed. 
The applicant has requested to reopen the record and extend the 120 day rule. 
 
The Commissioners discussed the request and agreed that the record should be reopened and continued at 
the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Kabeiseman suggested publishing the documents that were submitted and reviewing it at the next meeting 
or continuing it as a 7-7-7 process. 
 
Adams suggested re-noticing it and holding another hearing at the next meeting. 
 
They discussed the timeline and the new deadline for the City to make a decision. The new deadline would 
be January 1, 2023. 
 
Kabeiseman suggested doing a modified 7-7-7 as a 14-7-7 to ensure a final decision by January 1. 
 
Kabeiseman gave an overview of the dates.  
 
Motion: Knop moved re-notice and reopen the record re-notice folks and allow written material on 

any topic until Thursday 5 p.m on October 6th, then responsive materials to that anything 
that came in in the interim until Thursday October 13th at 5 pm, and then final written 
argument from the applicant only until uh due no later than 5 PM on Thursday October 
20th with deliberations on Thursday October 27th ; Moritiz seconded the motion. 

 
Vote: Kerr, Matusick, Knop, Bates, Moritz, Bennett and Chair Newton voted AYE; the motion 

passed 
 
NON HEARING ITEMS 

(5)  Work Session review of a Zoning Ordinance Amendment request by Will Rasmussen on behalf of 
Haystack Rock LLC, for a text amendment regarding notice requirements for applications and 
decisions. 

Rasmussen noted that they are scheduled for an actual hearing next month. Rasmussen got examples of 
other jurisdictions that have similar ordinances. He said he would follow-up with a letter with this 
information and summarized what he found. Rasmussen argued that the zoning change would lead to 
better decisions and save resources. He also argued that it would not take up too much staff time and 
resources. 
 
Moritz asked about simplifying the process by sending just an email that notifies the interested party that a 
decision has been made on the property of interest and they need to follow-up. 



 Planning Commission Minutes September 22, 2022   Page 3 of  4 

 
They discussed electronic vs mailed notification. 
 
They discussed the repercussions of mistakes made on notice. Rasmussen said that clerical errors that are 
not prejudicial are not usually an issue. 
 
Newton said that he is leery of more ways for the City to make a mistake. 
 
Adams answered questions from Rasmussen and the Commission. Adams said that either way his decision 
is going to be appealed and go to LUBA. He also noted that most appeals are between neighbors. Adams 
said that decisions are generally posted on Accela within 24 hours. Adams said that there are lots of ways 
for people to find information and he is worried about mistakes being reasons to throw out a decision.  
 
Rasmussen clarified that things would go to the PC and CC before going to LUBA. 
 
Adams said that his goal is to get things cleaned up through the Code Audit and not get bogged down in 
these sorts of issues. He said that the change would be a large strain on City staff. 
 
Moritz asked Rasmussen to look at how this process could be simplified. 
 
Rasmussen agreed to ask other jurisdictions about their workflow for similar ordinances. 
 
Sinclair asked if it has to be in the code or if this could be a good faith effort. 
 
Rasmussen said that it gives it more authority if it is in the code. 
 
Kabeiseman noted that current notice standards comply with state law. This is a questions of if the City 
wants to go beyond that. He noted that this is the only jurisdiction that allows decisions of building permits 
to go before the PC. Kabeiseman noted that CB is small and and people care a lot. That means small things 
become a big issue. He noted that this prevents the PC and the City from looking at the larger issues. 
 
They continued to discuss how they could change the proposal to make it more manageable. 
 
Chair Newton asked if there was any more discussion. There was none.  
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
(6)  Tree Report  

No comments.  
 
(7)  Ongoing Planning Items 

Adams noted that it was Katie Hillenhagen’ s last day tomorrow. 
Adams gave an update on the Code Audit. 

 
(8) Good of the Order 



 Planning Commission Minutes September 22, 2022   Page 4 of  4 

Newton thanked Adams and City Staff for all of the work that they have done. Newton also welcomed Les 
Sinclair as a new member to the PC. 
 
They discussed a letter submitted by Rosanne Dorsey (attached at the end of these minutes). 
 
Moritz said that they need to revisit their letter to the CC regarding stormwater discharge. 
 
Kabeiseman clarified that the applicant for the development on Forest Lawn could still appeal the CC 
decision.  
 
Newton asked St. Dennis if the City was doing anything in relation to the stormwater discharge on Forest 
Lawn. He said that he hoped the City was holding off on any action. 
 
St. Dennis said that he was not aware of anything but he would have to look into it. 
 
Bates had questions about why they were holding off on having a discussion. 
 
They discussed the need to hold off on the discussion. 
 
Sinclair thought it was open to interpretation and said that that emphasizes the importance of the code 
audit. 
 
They discussed how to move forward. 
 
Rosanne Dorsey said she got the letter late yesterday. She said she was fine with waiting until all decisions 
were made. She said that she thought it went to Public Works. 
 
Dana Caldwell PO box 1305, Cannon Beach reiterated what Rosey was saying. She thought the pressure was 
on the City as well as Dorsey. 
 
They continued to discuss stormwater on Forest Lawn.  
 
St. Dennis said that staff has been directed not to do anything until the matter is resolved. 
 
Newton summarized that during the discussion he heard that the City is not moving forward at this point 
and they are not compelled by the arbitrary timelines put forward by the developer. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 pm. 
 
 
 
             
                     Administrative Assistant, Katie Hillenhagen 










